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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Cllx HousIng Finance Private Limlited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financla! Statements

Opinlen

We have audited the accompanying standafone Ind AS flnancial statements of Clix Housing Flnance Private
Limited (“the Company"™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss Including the statement of Other Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financlal statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policlés and other explanatory information.

In our opinfon and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial stataments give the Informatloh required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
afmended ("the Act™} In the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affalrs of the Company as at March 31, 201, Its loss
Including other comprehensive income, 1ts cash flows and the changes In equity for the year ended on that
date.

Besis for Oplinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financlal statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described In the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalonie Ind AS Financial
Statements’ sectian of our report. We are.independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics'
Issued by the Institute of Charfered Accountants of India together with the ethleal requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rulas thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics, We heligve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls
for our audit opinlon on the standalene Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information which are included in the annual report, but does nof include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The annual report Is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ofher information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thareon.

In connection with our audit of the flnancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified abeve and, in doing so, conslder whether such the other information is materially Inconsistent with
the financlal statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit or otherwise appears to be materally
misstated. When we read the annual report, If we conclude that there s a material misstatement therein, we
are reguired te communicate the matter to those Charged with Governance.

Responsibility of Manzgement for the $tandalone Ind AS Finanelal Statemants

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone ind AS financlal statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indla, including
tha Indian Accounting Standards (Ind A%) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
({Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also Includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisians of the Act for safequarding of the assefs of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreguiarities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policles; making judgments and estimates that are reasenable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that werg, gpa
affectively for ensurfng the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant tpsfr -
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preparation and presentation of the standalone ind AS financial statements that glve a true and falr view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financlal statements, management Is responsible for assessing the
Company's ablilty to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the golng concern basls of accounting unless management either intends to llquidate the Company
or to cease cperations, or has no realistic alternative hut to do so.

Those Board of Directors are alsa responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standafone Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinlon. Reasonable. assurance Is a high lavel of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arlse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggreqate,
they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalene Ind AS financlal statements.

As part of an audit In aceordance with SAs, we exerclse professlonal judgment and malntaln professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess £he risks of materlal misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financlal statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audlt evidence that s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinlon. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from erver, as
fraud may Iinvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intarnal control. )

»  Obtaln an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplnfon on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the approprlateness of accounting pollcles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the approprlateness of management’s use of the geing concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related o events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to centinue as a going concern. If -

we conclude that a material uncertalnty exlsts, we are required to draw attentlon in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financlal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our epinfon. Our conclusions arz based on the audit evidence obtalned up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to confinue as a going
concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlylng transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In nternal control
that we identify during our audit.

We alsa provide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ail relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, related safequards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguiraments
1, As required by the Companles (Audltor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order™), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of seciion 143 of the Act, we give Inthe "Annexure 1”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder, ans
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2. As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repart that:

(a)

()

{c)

()

&)

0]

(g}

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the hest of our knawledge
and bellef ware necessary for the purposes of our audif;

In our oplnion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes In Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our epinion, the aforesald standalone Ind AS finandlal staternents comply with the Accounting
gtandards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the hasis of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
of record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disgualified as on March 31, 2019 from
helng appolnted as a diractor In terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

This report does not include Report on the Internal financial controls under clause () of Sub-seciion
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Report on Internal financial contrels’, since in
our oplnlon and according to the informatlan and explanation given to us, the said report on internal
financial controls Is not applicable to the Company basis the exemptlion avallable to the Comypany
under MCA notificatlen no. G.5.R. 563(E) dated June 13, 2017, read with corrigendum dated July
13, 2017 on reporting on internal financlal contrals over financial reporting;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019;

With respact to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rulz 11
of tha Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in oeur apinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given te us:

. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on Its flnancial poslilon In its
standalone Ind AS financlal statements ~ Refer Note 42 fo the standalone Ind AS financlal

statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accouniing
standards, for material foreseeable losses, it any, on lang-term contracts including derivative
contracts - Refer Note 41 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements;

jiil. There were nd amounts which were reguired to pe transferred to the Investor Education and
Protectich Fund by the Company. '

For §.R. Batlibol & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants

per A

Partnsr
Membership Humber: 094533
Place of Signature: Gurugram

Registration Number: 101049W/fE300004

Date: June 28, 2019
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Annexure I referved to In paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Requlatory
Requlrements’ of our repart of even date '

m The Cotmpany does nhot have any fixed assets, accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(l) (a), (1) and
(c) of the Order are nat applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

an The Company's business does not involve Inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3¢ of the Order are not applicable te the Company and hence not commented upon,

i (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
setured or knsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liablilty Partnerships or other parties coveredIn
the register maintained under sectlon 189 of the Companies Aci, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(Hil)(a), (b) and {c} of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

() in our opinlon and according to the information and explanations ¢given to us, there are ne loans,
investments, guarantaees, and securities given In respect of which provisions of section 183 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence nat commented upan,

) The Company has not aceepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companles (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

)] To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company Is nct in the business of sale of any
goods, Therefore, in our opinion, the provislons of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not appllcable ta the
Company.

(vil} (a) Undisputed statutory dues Inclucdlng provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, value
added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay In a few cases. The
provisions relating to duty of exclse and sales-tax are not applicable to the Company.

(h) According io the Information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, cess and other
materlal statutory dues were ouistanding, at the year end, for a period of mora than six months from
the date they became payable. The provisions refating to customs duty and excise duty are not
applicable to the Company.

{c) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of Income tax, goods and services tax,
value added tax and cess on account of any dispute.

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted In repayment of loans or borrowlng to a financial Institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

x> According to the information and expfanations glven by the management, the Company has not
raised money by way of initial publlc offer / further public offer fdebt instruments and term foan
hence, reporiing under clause Gx) s nof applicable to company hence not commented upon.

0 Based upon the audit procedures parformed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the flnanclal statements and according to the Information and explanations given by the
management, we raport that no fraud by the Company or no fraud/material fraud on the Company
by the officars and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi} According to the information and explanations given by the managament, the provisions of saction
197 read with Schedule V of the Act ts not applicable to the Company and hence reporting undar
clause 30y are not applicable and hence not commented upan.

xin Inn our opinlon, the Company Is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xIi} of the
Qrder are not applicabile to the Company and hence not commented upon,
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xtii)

¢{i)

)

vy

For S.R.

According to the information and explanations glven by the management, transactions with the
ralated parties are In compllance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the detalls have been disclosed In the notes to the financial statetnents, as raquired by the
applicable accounting standards. ‘

According to the Information and explanations glven to us and on an overall examinatlon of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferentlal allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertlble debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
reguirements under clause 3(xIv) are hot applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According te the Information and explanations glven by the management, the Company has not
encered Into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in sectlon 192 of Companles Act, 2013.

According to the Information and explanations given to us, the provisions of sectlon 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of Indla Act, 1934 are not applicable to the company.

BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

per Al
Partner

Membershlp Number: 094533
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 28, 2019

sgistration Number: 101049W/E300004




Clix Houshig Finance Private Limlted
Balance Shaet as ot 31 March 2019
(Al amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlsa)

Nates As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
ASSETS
Flancisl asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2 107,708 100,344
Laans 6 834,527 17,527 -
Cther financlal assets 7 4,052 - -
Non- financal assets
Current tax assets (net) 704 549
Other non- financial assets g 4,363 739 .
Tatal assets 843,788 126,523 100,394
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY.
LIABILITIES
Financia’ llabititles
Payahles 9
1) Trade Payzbles
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - -
enterprisas
Ir) total outstanding dues of ereditars other than micro 53,228 8,427 a5
enterptises and small enterprises
11} Other Pavables
a} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - -
enterprises
b} total outstanding dues of creditors ather than miers 9,569 2,533 -
entarprises and small enterprises
Borrowings (othar than Debt Securltias) 10 269,544 - -
Qther financtal liabllitles 11 26,173 11,029 .
Non financlal llabitities
Currant tax liabiitles (net) - - 61
Pravisions 12 1,556 328 "
Gther non-financial Liabitilias 13 1312 1445 5
Total tabllites 361,387 23,760 111
Equity
Equlty share capital 14 550,000 120,000 100,000
Other equity 15 {67,589) {17,237} 233
Total Equity . 482,401 102,763 100,233
Total fiabilites and Equity 84%785 126,523 100,344
Sighificant accounting policles 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
Ag par our report of even date

For 5.R. Batlibol & Assaciates LLP
Chartgrgd Accountants
ICAIfFirm Reglstration No. 101049%W/F300004

pear ra "
Partner

Membershlp No. 094533

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 June 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directhrnof
Clix Housing Financa Privata Limitad

W

Vilkas Aggarwal
rectar
DIN: 67685833

Purva Arara
Compony Secretory
Membership Ng; 53126

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 lune 2014




Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Statement of Profik and logs for the periad ending 31 March 2019
{All amount Jn INR thausancds, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Notes Year enderl Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Ravenue from operations

Interast income 16 35,779 54
Fees and commission Income 17 3,019 57
Net gain on fair value changes 18 743 .
Tatal revenye from operations 30,541 111
Other income 19 176 5,491
Total Income 35,817 5,602
Expanses
FInznce Costs 20 6,435 14
Irmpalirment on financlal instrumeants el 2,538 166
Emplover Benafits Expense 21 45,212 17,308
Other expenses 23 31,485 6,080
Tata) Expenses 19,667 23,568
]
Loss hefore tak {4, 850) (17,966)
Tax Expense; 24
{1) Current Tax - 19
{1} Deferred Tax - .
Loss for the year (249,850) (17!935;

Other Comprehensive tnecome
A, Items that will nat be reclassied to proft or hoss
Remeasurements of deflned benefit ability {71} -
tncome Tax Effect - -
B, ltams that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Other Comprehansive Income , net of Income tax {71} -
Tatal Comprehensive Income for the year {49,921} (17!985!
Earnings par equity shara of Rs. 10/- sath 25

Basle (MR} {1.81) (1.57)
Diluted {(NR) {1.81) (1.57)
Nominal valua per sharea {INR) 10 10
Significant accounting palicies 3

The accormpanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statemants
As per our report of even date

For 5,R, Batiihol & Assoclates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clix Housing Finance Privatahmited
__ , \
pott TS ’ i gal Vi gearwal
Partner e ireckbr Director
Membearship No, 054533 DIN: 08205184 DIN: 07685833
Place: Gurugram @
Date: 28 June 2019
Purva Arora
Company Secretory

Membership No: 53126

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 June 2019




Clin Housing Fliance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 32 March 2019
{All amount In INR thousands, except For share data unless stated otherwise)

a, Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 2ach issued, subseribed and fully paid No. INR thousands

At April 2017 10,000,000 100,000
Share issued durlng the year ended 31 March 2018 2,000,000 20,000
Al 31 March 2018 12,000,000 120,000
Share Issued durlng the year ended 31 March 2019 43,000,000 430,000
At 31 March 2019 55,000,000 550,000

b. Other Equity

Partfculars Reserves ant surplus Total
Share based Retalned garning
payment reserve
Balance at 1st Aprll 2018 515 (£7,752) (17,237)
Loss for the year - (49,850) (49,850
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - {71) (71
Total Comprahensive Income for the year - (49,921} (49,921)
Share based payment reserve (441) - {441)
Balance at 31st March 2019 74 {67,673} (67,599)
9
Bartlculars Reserves and surplus Total
Share based Retainad earning
pavment reserva

Balance at 1st April 2017 - 233 233
Loss for the year - (17,985) {12,985)
Other Comprehensive lncoma for the year - - -
Total Comprehensive Incoma for the year {17,985} {17,985)
Share basad payment reserve 515 - 515
Balance at 31st March 2018 515 (17,752) {17,237)
The accompanying noies are an integral part of the flnancial statements
As per cur report of even date
For 8.R. Batlibol & Associatas LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charterad Accountants Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
ICAl Fifs Registration No. 101049W/E300004
par Amm(a?x;e’:: s Aggarwal

Partner
Membership No, 094533

Piace: Gurugram
Date; 28 June 2019

Purva Arora
Company Secretory

Membership No: 53126

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 June 2019

Director
DiN: 07685833



il Houstng Financa Private Himjted
Cash Flow Statement for the year endad 31 March 2019
[All amaunt in INR thousanis, except for share data unless stated otherwise]

Particwars Year ended Yanr ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2048

Cash Now from oparating actlvities

Loss Lefore tax {49,850) |17,966]
Adjustesl foi:
Nt gain on fair value changas (743) -
Share based paymeant (441) 515
Pracessing Fee . 5N
Provision for expected credit loss {ECL) 5,446 {29)
Ramsasurements of deflned benefit liakility (71 -
Operating less before working capltal chanpges (45,659 {12,537)

Adjusted for net cianges In working capita!

Iteraase in financiak assets and other assets {836,433) {18,587}
Increase in finandal liabifities and other liabllittes 74,126 21,832
Net Cush used in operating activities {807,066) {22,292)
Cash flows from Investing activities

Purchase of Mutual furd (891,500) -
Sate of mutual Fund 892,243 “
Net Cosh generated from lnvesting activitles 743 -

Cash llows from Onancing activitias

Proesads from issuance of aquity share capltal 430,000 20,600
Pracsads from Overdraft Facillty 19,517 .
Praceeds from Inter Corporain Loan 330,000 -
Rapaymant of Inter Carporata Lean {80,000} -
Net Cash generated from flnaricing aetlvities 699,517 20,000
Net Incrense / (tiacrzase) In cash and cash ayulvalents [107,706) 1,708
Cash and cash ayulvalents at the beglnnling of the year 107,708 100,000
Cagh and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2 107,708

The accomtpanying nates are an intogral part of the financlal statstnents
As par our raport of even date attached

for 3.R. Batithol & Asscclates LLP For and on hehalf of thp Board of Directors of
Charterad Aceountants Clis HousIng Finance Pilvate Limited
Vil 2garwal
Director

DIN: 07685833

Menbership Ne.: 094533

PMace: Gurugram
Date: 28 June 2019
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financfal statements. Purva Arora
Campany Secretary
Membership No: 53126

Mace: Gurugram
Date: 28 June 2019




Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements far the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

1 Corporate information
Clix Housing Finance Private Limited Is a private limitad company domiciled in India and incorpaorated on 2 December 2016
under the provisions of Companles Act, 2013 with CIN-U85999DL2016PTC308791. The Company is a 100% wholly owned
subsidiary of Clix Capital Service Private Limlited (formerly known as "GE Money Financial Services Private Limited”. The
Company has received certification of registration dated 18 August 2017 from National Housing Bank {'NHB'") with registration
no,08.0157.17, The Company together Is primarily engaged in lending activities. The Comipany's registered office s at 4th Floor,
Kailash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Cannought Place, New Delhi - 110001, India

2 {i) Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prapared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (thd AS) notified
under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group prepared its financial stataments in accordance
with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 af the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP), These financial statements for the year ended 31 March
20019 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepf for other financial assets held for trading and
financial assets and lizbilities designated at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL), all of which have been measured at falr
value, The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands,
except when otherwise indicated.

(if) Presentation of financial statement

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial abilities are generally reported
gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional fegally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without belng contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle
ah a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

A, The normal course of business

B. The event of default

C. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/er its counterparties.

3 Significant accounting policies
3.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of Standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management ta make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabifities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilittes, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowtedge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in the outcomes regquiring a material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets ot liabilities in future periods.




Clix Housing Flnance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amount in thousards, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

3.1.1 Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the 5PPE and the business model test. The
Company determines the business model at a level that reflacts how Companys of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflacting afl relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and
how these are mapaged and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company maonltors financial assets
fmeasured at amottised cost or fair value through other comprehensive Income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to
understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent wlth the objective of the business for which
the asset was held. Monitoring Is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financlal assets are held cantinues tair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), all of which have been measured at fair
value, Further the carryihg values of recognised assets and liabilities that ar

3.1.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments 1s the price that would be recaived to sell an assat or pald to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal {or most atvantageous) market at the measuremnent date under current market conditions
li.e., an exit price} regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue, When
the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the halance sheet cannot be derived from active markets,
they are determined using a variety of valuation techniguas that Include the use of valuation models, The Inputs to these
tmodels are taken fram observable markets where possible, but where this Is not feasible, estimation is reguired in establishing
fair values. judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and mode! inputs related to items such as credit risk
{both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details about determination of
fair value pleass see Note 4.11 Note 48.

3.1.3 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The company's EIR methodeology, recognises Interest Income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate
of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of patentially
different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the produet kife cycle (including prepayments and penalty
interest and charges),

This estimation, by nature, reguires an element of judgement regareling the expected hehaviour and life-cycle of the
instruments, as wall expected changes to India’s base rate and ather fee Income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.




Clix Houslng Finance Private Litited
Notes ta Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amaunt in thousands, except for share data unlass stated otherwise)

3.1.4 Impalrment of financial asset
The measurement of Impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires Judgement, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of
a significant increase n credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes In which can result in different
levels of allowances.
The company’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice
of varfalblz Inputs and their Interdependencies, Elements of the ECL models that are considerad accounting judgements and
estimates include:
I. The Company’s internal model, which assigns PDs.
Il @he Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase In credit risk and so allowances for financial
assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment
1 iThe segmentation of financlal assets when their £CL is assessed on a collective hasis
iv.ievelopment of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs
V.EGetermination of assoctations between macroeconomic stenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and
collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADS and LGDs
ViBelection of forward-locking macroeconomic scanarios and their prabability weightings, to derive the economic inputs inta
the ECL models
It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its madels in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when
necessary.

3.1.5 Defined employee benefit assats and fiabilitias

The cost of the defined banefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligatian are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and #ts long-term nature, a dafined benafit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in thase assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.1.6 Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactlons requires determination of the most approprlate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate Inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them,

2.1.7 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company eperates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk
inherent to Tts operations. As a result, It s involved in various fitigation, arbitration and regulatary investigations and
proceadings in the ardlnary course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such
Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a
number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant
Judgement is required to conclude an these estimates,

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash halances on hand, cash balances in bank, and highly liguid investments with maturity
period of three months or less frem the date of investment.
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3.2 Revenue recognition

a} Interest and similar income

Interest income, for all financial instruments measured elther at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, Is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR). EIR Is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the axpettad life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes into accaunt all contractual terms of the
financlal instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any faae ar incremental costs that are directly attributable
and are an integral part of the €I, but not future credit losses.

The Company calculates interest Income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets. When a financlal asset becomes credit-impaired and 15, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Company
calculates interest income by applying the effective Interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the finandial
assets cures and is no Janger cradic-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest incame on a gross basis.

b) Foraclosure charges and other fees

Foreclosure charges and other fees which include cheque baunce charges, penat fee, legal charges and prepayment charges etc.
are recognised as income when there is certainity regarding the receipt of payment.

¢} Dividend income

Dividend income Is recognized when the Company’s right te receive the payment is estahlished, it s probabie that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount ¢f the dividend can be measured reliably,
This is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

3.4 Foreign currancy

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR} which [s also the Company’s functional curtency.

Transactlons in fareign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respectiva functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Income and expenses in forelgn currencies are initially recorded by the
Compahy at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the functiona!l currency spot rates of
exchange at the reparting date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized In the
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historlcal cost in a foreigh currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary Hems maeasured at fair value in a fareign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the sair value is determined, The gain or loss arising on trahslation of nan-monetary items
measurad at falr value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e,,
translation differences on ftems whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or prefit or loss are also recognized in OCl or
profit or loss, respectively).




Clix Housing Finance Private Limitad
Notes to Financial Statements for tha year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amourt in thousands, except for share data undess stated otherwise)

3.5 Operating Leases

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are
recognized as operating leases, The Company has ascertained that the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflaticn to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases and therefore, the lease
payments are recognized as per terms of the lease agreement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Intangible assats

PPE

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its werking condition for its
intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, If any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attrioutable cost of bringing the assat to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is
capitalized only when it Is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow o the Company and the cost
of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurrad.

An Item of property, plant and eguipment and any significant part initially recegnised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-tecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset Is derecognised.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Initial recognition at cest. Following initial recognition, intangible assats
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulatad impairment iosses.

3.7 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

Owned assets

{a) Leasehold improvements arg amortised over the lease term as stated in the lease agreement or useful life of the asset
whichever is lower.

(b} Intangible assets conslsting of computer software are depreciated on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 years from the
date of ready to use. . ‘

{c) Depreciatlon on other owned fixed assets |s provided on straight line method at the rates, computed based on estimated
useful life of those assets as preseribed under Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013. Land is not depreciated.
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The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

- Computars - 3 years
- Office equipment - 5 years
~ Furniture and fixtures - 10 years
- Computer softwares - 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, If appropriate

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each batance sheet date If there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss Is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recaverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and rlsies specific to the asset. In determining net selling price,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available, 1§ no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remalning useful life.

3.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or censtructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of tha amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of maney s material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
approprlate, the risks specific to the llability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time s recognised as a finance cost.

3,10 Contingent liahilities and assets

The Company does not recagnize a contingent liability but discloses Its existence In the financial statements. Contingent liabllity
is disclasad In the case of:

It is not probahle that cutflaw of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
A prasent obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible
A pessible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

Contingent labilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of
economic benefits is prababla,
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3.11 Retirement and other employee benefits

The Company's obligation towards various emplayee benefits has been recognised as follows:

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
beneflts. Benefits such as salarles, wages and bonus etc., are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

Defined contribution plan

Provitent fund is a defined contribution plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited with Regional
provident fund commissioner and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plan

The Company pays gratuity to employees who retire or resign after a minimum perlod of five years of continuaus service. The
Company makes contributions to its own Gratuity Trust. The gratuity trust invests tha contribution In insurer managed scheme.

Other long-term benefits — Compensated absences
Entitlernents to annual leave are recognised when they acerue to employees. Balance [eaves, if any can be encashed at the time

of retirerment/ termination of employment. The Company determines the lability for such accumulated leave entitlements on
the basts of actuarial valuation as at the year end.

3,12 Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current incoma tax

Current Income tax assets and llabliities are measured ai the amount expected to be recoverad from or paid to the taxation
authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and other applicable tax
laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the reparting date.

Current Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit of loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other
comprehensive Income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised In correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
ar directly in equity.
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Deferrad tax

Deferred tax is provided using the |lability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised far all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temperary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrylng amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and raduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised io the extent that it has
become probable that future taxablz profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and Habilitles are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
ar the liability is settled, based oh tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. .

Deferred tax relating to ftems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outsidle profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised In rarrelation to the underlying transaction either in QCI
or directly In equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset i a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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3.13 Earning per share

Basic earnings per share sre calculated by dividing the nat profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of
an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid eguity share during the
reporiing year,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential eguity shares,

3.14 Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing simitar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share hased payments is expensed on a stralght line basls over
the wvesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the humber of equity
instruments expected to vest. The Impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based
Payments Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected &s additioral share dilution In the computation of diluted earnings per
share.

3.15 Financial instruments

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enfity and a financial lizbility or equity
instrument of another antity.
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3.15.1 Financial Assets

3.15.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to custemers, are initially recognised on the trade date, Le,, the date
that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are
recognised when funds are disbursed to the customers, The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends
an their purpose and characteristics 2nd the management’s intention when acquiring them. All financlal assets are recognised
Initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

3.15.1.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classifiad in four categories:
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments and eguity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTFPL)
Debt instruments at faly value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Equity instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)

3.15.1.3 Debt instruments at amaortised costs
A 'debt instrument’ s measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractuai cash flows, and
ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{5PPE) on the principal amount outstanding.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in crder to generate cash flows. That is, where
the Group’s ohbjective Is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the same is measured at amartized cost or
where the Group’s ohjective is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, the
same s measured at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI). If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial
assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at
FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect and sarn contractual cash flows {i.e. measured at amortized cost),
the Group assesses whether the financlal instruments’ cash flows represant solely payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPPi
test’). In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement |.e. interest Includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a
prefit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangemaent, the relatad financial asset is classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss. The amortized cost, as mantionad above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortisad cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method less impairment, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premlum on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit or
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
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3.15.1.4 Debt instruments at FVOQ

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criterta are met:

i. The abjective of the husiness model is achieved beth by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,

ii. The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPP1,

Debt instruments Includad within the FVTOC categery are measured initially as wall as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized In the other comprehensive income {0Cl), However, the Company recognizes Interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and Fforeign exchangs gain or loss in the P&L. On derscognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously racognised In 0OC) Is reclassified fram the equity to PAL Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI
deht instrumerit is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

3.15.1.5 Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVIPL & a residual category for debt Instruments. Any debt Instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FYTCC, is classified as at FVTPL

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amottized cost or FYTOC criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election Is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement

or recognition Inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments inctuded within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

3.15.1.6 Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading classified
as at FVTPL. for all other aquity Instruments, the Company may make an irrevocakle glection to present In other
comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification Is made on initial recognition and Is irrevocable.

If the company decldes to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,

excluding dividends, are recognized In the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from QC! to P&L, even on sale
of investment. Howevar, the cotmpany may transfer the cumutative gain ar loss within equity.

Equity mstruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
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31.15.2 Financial Liahilities
3.15.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial llabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial labillty Is classified as at EVTPL if it is
classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at falr value
and, in the case of foans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The company’s financial liabilives include trade and other payables, [oans and borrowings Including bank overdrafts and
derivative financial instruments,

3.15.2.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement - Financial liabilitles at fair value thraugh profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss inciude financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financlal liabllitles are dasstfied as held for
trading if thay are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also Includes derivative
financial Tnstruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on labilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or foss are designated as such at the Initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For labilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes In own credit risk are recognized in OCl These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to P&L, However, the company may transfer the curmulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and lass.

2.15.2.3 Loans and borrowings

After Initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequertly measured at amartised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amartisation process.

Amottised cost Is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to borrowings,
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3.15.3 ReclassHication of financial assets and liabilities

The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
clreumstances In which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a husinass line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

3.15.4 De recognition of financial assets and liabilities
3.15.4.1 Deretognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the madification of terms and conditions have
been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, It becomes a new loan, with the differance racognised as a derecognition
gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recerded. If the madification does not result in cash
flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows
discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain ar loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already baen recordad. '

3.15.4.2 Derecognition of financlal assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of & group of similar financial assets)is derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows fram the financlal asset have expirad. The Company also derecognisas the financlal asset if
it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company.has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

¥ The Company has transferred Its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financlal asset, or
B 1t retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligatian to pay the received cash flows in full without materlal
delay to a third party under a 'pass—through’ arrangement.

pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a
financial agset (the ‘eriginal asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to ane or more entitles {the
‘eyentual recipients’), when all of the following three conditions are met:

p-The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts from
the original assat, excluding short-term atlvances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at
market rates.

B The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset ather than as security te the eventual recipients.

B The Company has to remit any cash flows it callects an behalf of the aventual recipients without material delay.

In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash fiows, except far investments In cash or cash equivalents
inctuding interest earnad, during the period between the coilection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

»The Company has transferred substantiatly all tha tisks and rewards of the asset, or

p-Mhe Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,but has transferrec
control of the asset.
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The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ahility to sell the asset in its
antirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions
on the transfer,

Whet the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the
asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the
Company also recognises an associated lability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured an a basis that
reflacts the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing invelvemant that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration the Company could be required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchasad option {or bath} on the transferred asset,the continuing
involvement Is measured at the value the Corpany would ba required to pay upon repurchase. In the case of a written put
option on an assat that is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the
fair value of the transferred asset and the aption exercise price.

3.15.4.2 Financial Liabilities

A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.Where an existing
financlal liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different tarms, or the terms af an existing

. liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification Is treated as a derecognition of the ariginal liability and the
recogrition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration
péid is recognised in profit ar foss.
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3.16 Impairment of financial assets

3.16.1 Qverview of the ECL principles

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit {osses for all leans and other debt financial assets not held at FypL,
together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, (in this section ali referred to as financial
instruments'}. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under IND AS 109,

The ECL allowance Is based on the credit [osses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or
LTECL), unless there has been ne significant increase in credit risk since originatian, in which case, the allowance is based on
the 12 months' expected credit loss (12mECL)).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that rasult from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on coliective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolic of
financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting periad, of whether a
financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initlal recognition.

Based on the above process, the Campany groups its loans Into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also
include facilitles where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase In credit risk since originatlon, the company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also Include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the lean has been
reclassifled from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impalred {as outlined in Note 7). The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs

For financial assets for which the company has no reasonable expactations of recovering elther the entire outstanding
amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset Is reduced. This is considered a (partial)
derecognition of the financial asset.

3.16.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probabillty-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discountad at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to
an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to recelve,
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The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key slements are, as follows:
-PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A
default mayonly happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if thea facility has not been previausly
derecognised and is still in the portfolio.
-EAD - The Exposure at Default is an exposure at a default date,

-LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. 1t is
based an the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender woull expect io receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral. 1t is usuzlly expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument.
The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default =vents on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates the the 12mECL allowance
based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 menths following the raporting date. These expected 12-month
default probabilittes are applied to a EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD,

Stage 2: When a Joan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime
of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired (as defined in Note 7) , the Company recognizes the lifetime expected crediv
tossas for thesa leans, The method is simflar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of
the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the
expacted shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down.

For loan commitmaents, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.

3,16.3 Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economlc developments accurring in the economy
and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses If there is any relationship between key economic trends
like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD
determined by the Company based on 1ts internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not
be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodolegy to reflect such macre-
ecanamic trends reasonably.
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3.16.4 Collateral repossessed

The Company’s policy is to sell the repossessed asset, Non-financial assets repossessed are transferred ta assets held for sale at
fatr valuz less cost to sell or principle outstanding, whichever is less, at the repossession date.

3.16.5 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off elther partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped pursuing the recovery. If
the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference Is first treated as an addition to

the allowance that s then applied against the gross carrying amount, Any subsequent recoveries are credited to profit
and foss account,
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3.17  Fair value measurement

The Cornpany measures financlal instruments at fair value at each balance sheat date ysing valuation techniques,

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumgtion that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the imost advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liahility, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes Into account a markst participant’s ability to generate econemic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuatlon techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suffictent data are
avaifable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observablz inputs and minimising the use of uncbservable
inputs.

All assets and Fabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
vatue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 ~ Valuation technlques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unabservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fafr value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting peried.

3.18 Dividend

The Company recognises a liakility to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution Is no langer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a lizbility on the date of
approval by the sharehalders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s
Board of Diractors.

3.19 Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis and provisions arz made for all known losses and liabilities, The Company has also
enterad into certain cost sharing arrangements for resources shared with other entities, The costs aliocated to the Company
under the cost sharing arrangements are included in the respective expenses. The costs allocated to other entities under the
cost sharing arrangement are shown as amounts recaverable from the respective parties.
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4 Standard issuet but not yet effective
Ind A5 116 : lLeases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notiied on March 31, 2018 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, Including appendices theveto, ind AS 116 is
effactive for annual parlods beginning on or after April, 01, 2019,

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for alt leases under a single on-halance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17, The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value’ assets and shartterm leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recagnise a rabiiity to make lease payments and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expanse on the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases:
operating and finsnce leases.

The effective date far adoption of Ind A$ 116 is annual pericds beginning on or after April 1, 2019, The standard permits two
possible methods of transition:

{a) Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prlor period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

(0} Modified retrospective — Retraspectively, with the cumulative effect of inltially applying the Standard recognized at the date
of initial application.

Under madified retrospective approach, the lessee recortds the lease liahility as the present value of the remaining lease
pavrments, discountad at the incremental borrowing rate and the rlght of use asset either as:

(a) 1ts carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s
incremental borrawing rate at the date of initial application or

{b) An amount equal to the lease lability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that
lease racognized under Ind AS 17 Immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the mathods.

The company is still under the process of avaluation of available transition options and a reliable estimate of the quantitative
impact of Ind AS 116 an the financial statements will only be possible once Company completes its assessment.
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As at As at As at

Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks in current accounts
In Daposits with orlginal maturity of lass than three months

31 Murch 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2057

2 37,679.00 -
- 70,029.34 1,00,344

2 1,07,708.34 1,00,344

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the folfowing:

As at As at Asat
33 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Balances o Current account with:
Schedules Banks
Balance in Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

2 37,679 "
- 70,028 1,00,344

2 1,07,708 1,00,344
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As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 Aprll 2017
Note 6: Loans
In India
At Amortised Cost
Loan assets 8,37,254 17,569
Total (A) Gross 8,37,254 17,569
Less: Impairment loss allowance (2,627 142}
Total {A) Net 8,34,627 17,527
Secured by tangible assets {property induding land and
builiding) 8,347,254 17,569
Total {B) Gross 8,37,254 17,569
Less: Impalrment lass allowance {2,627) (42)
Total (B) Net ' 8,34,627 17,527
Loans in India
Public Sector -
Others 8,37,254 17,569
Total (C} Gross 8,37,254 17,569
Less: Impairment loss allowance (2,627) {42)
Total (C) Net 8,34,627 17,527
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(Al amaunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless staied

Note 6.2 Loan Commitment

5.2.1 An analysls of changes in the gross carrying amaunt and the cortasponding ECL
allowances in refation to loan commitment s, as follows:

Particulars FY 2018-19  FY 2017-18
Gross carrying amount opening balance 24,983 -
New assets originated 14,168 24,583
Assets dishursed/eancelled (24,983) -
Gross carrying amount closing balance 14,168 24,983

6.2.2 Recontiliation of ECL balance s glven below:

Partlculars FY 2018-19  FY 2017-18
ECL allowance - opening balance 124 -
New assats originated 73 124
Assets disbursed/cancelled ’ {124} -
ECL allowance - closing balance 73 124

There have been no transfers between Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 during the year ended 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2019 and hence not shown separately in above tables.
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Nate 6.3 Impairment assessment

The raferenceas below show where the Company’s impalrment assessment and maasurement approach Is set out In these notes, it should be
read i conjunction with the Sumrmary of slgniflcant accounting policies.

- Defmition of default
The Company canslders & Anancial instrumeant as defaultad and classifies Ht as Stage 3 {eradit-impalrad) for ECL ealculations typlcally when the
borrowar becomes 90 doys past due on contractual paymets. The Group may also classify o loan In Stage 3 if there Is slgnificant deterioration
it the Joah collateral, deterioratian In the financial candition of the borrower or af assessment that adverse market conditlons may have 3
disprapartionately detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessmant of whether an Instrumentis in
default, the Company alsa considers a variety of Instances that may indicate delay in or nonrepayment of the inan. When such events cceur, the
Company carafully censiders whether the event should rasult In treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL
caleulgtions or whather Stape 2 Is appropriate.
Classiicatlon of accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basls and typlcally accounts where contractual repayments are more than 30
days past due are cassified In stage 2.

it Is the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrumant a5 ‘cured” and therefore re-classifled out of Stage 2 when nona of the default
ctlteria are present, The decision whether to classlfy an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 anee cured dapends on the updated credit grade once the
account is cured, and whether this indlcates there has been a significant retluction it credit sk,

« Probability of default
‘The credit rating provided by the externat rating agenciesfaccount level dellnguency/ internal matrlk has been considared while asslgring
Probability of Default {PD) at a portfolio level.The PDs are romputed for hamogenous portfolio segments.

- Exposure at default

The outstandlng bslanca as at the reperting date is cansiderad as EAD by the Company, Considering that PD datermined above factors in
amount at default, there s no separate requirement ta estimate EAD,

- Loss givan default (LGD)
‘The Company uses histarical loss datafexternal agency LG for identifled homogenous poals for the purpese of calculating LGD. The gstimated
recovery cash flows are discaunted such that the LGG calcuiation factars In tha NPV of the recoveries,

- Slgnificant increase in credit risk

The Company evaluates the foans on an engoing basis. The Campany also assessas it thera has been a significant incraase in cradit risk since the
previously Hsk taking Inte consideratien both qualitative and quantitative information . One kay factor that indicates significant increase In
credit fsk Is when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

- Grouplng financial assets measured on a collective basis

The Campany calculates ECts on collectiva basks on following asset class:-
+Hausing pertfolic
- Loan against property {LAP) portfalio
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Note 8.4 Collateral

The Company halds collataral Yo mitigate credit risk associated with ftaanciat sssets. The main types of collateral and the types of assets thuse
are associated with are listed |n the tahla below. The callateral presentad relates to Instruinents that are measured at amortised cost,

Az at Asat As at
Partlsulars 31 March 2019 33 Mareh 2018 13 April 2017
Rasldentlal & Non-Residentlal Properties BA4,624 17,527 -
8,34,626 17,527 . -

The Company did nat hald any financlal instrument for which ne lass allowance Is recagnised because of callateral at March 31, 2018, There
was na changain tha Company's collateral policy or callaterat quality during the periad,

Refer Note 33.2,2 for risk concentration based on loan to value {LTV)
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As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 DMarch 2008 1 April 2017
Note 7: Other financial assets
Arcalvabla from custemers 4,092 -
Taotal 4,092 - -
As at As at Az at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Nate 8: Other non financial assats
Prepald axpenses 1,755 725
Balance with statutory/government authorities
- GST input eredit 2,608 14 -
Total 4,363 739 «
Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2008 1 April 2017
Note 9: Payakles
Trade Payables® $3,229 8,427 45
Other Payahles 9,569 2,533 -
62,798 10,960 %,

* The Minlstry of Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memaorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recomimends
that the Micre and Small Enterprises should mention in their corraspandarice with its eustamers the Entreprenaurs Mernarandum
Number as allocated after fling of the Memerandum. 8ased an information received and available with the Company, there are no
amounts paysble to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2012 and 1 AprH 2017,
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As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2008 1 April 2017

Note 10: Borrowings {other than debt securities)

Secured

Bank overdraft® 18,517 - -
Unsecured
inter-Corporate Deposit # 2,50,027 - -
Total gross {A} 2,69,544 - -
Borrowings in India 2,569,544 - -
Barrowings outside India
Total! {B} to tally with {A) 2,69,544 - ~

* Bank Overdraft is secured by first pari passu charge on all current and future standard book
debts/recaivable of the borrower excluding i) any moveable, fixed or immovable asset; i) any
investmants in afflliate, group companies, joint venture or subsidiary; and iii) statutory liguid ratio
investment of the borrower from time to time,

# Terms of repayment of inter-corporate deposit as at March 31, 2019

Due within 1 Year

No. of
Repayments Interest Rate \ Amount
installments

At the end of tenure : 9%-10.5% - . 2,550,000

Total 2,50,000
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Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Mote 11! Other financial Hiabllities
Inter company payables 26,178 11,029 -
Total 26,178 %029 -
As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 12: Provisions
Provislon for employee benafits
Leave encashment 946 202 -
Gratuity payable 537 - -
Provision for Loan Commitment 73 124 -
Total 1,556 326 -
As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note £3: Other nan-financial liahilities
Statutory dues payable 1312 1,445 5
Total 1,312 1,445 5
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As at Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April J017

Naote t4: Equity Share Capltal

Authorised :
£5,000,000 (31 March 2018: 20,000,000 and 1 Aprll 201.7: 10,000,600) 5,50,000 2,400,000 1,00,000
Equity Shares of 5. 10/~ eath

5,540,000 2,00,000 1,040,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paidsup:
55,000,000 {31 March 2018: 12,000,000 and 1 April 2017; 10,000,000) 5,50,000 1,20,000 1,00,000
Equlty Shares of Rs, 10/~ each
Total 5,50,000 1,20,000 1,050,000
Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

As at As al Asat

31 miarch 2019 31 March 2018 1 Aprll, 2017

Authorised Capital

55,000,000 {31 March 2018: 20,000,000 and 1 Aprlf 2017: 16,000,000)
Equity Shares of Rs. 16/~ each 5,50,000 2,00,000 1,00,000

5,540,000 #,00,000 1,00,000

Issued , Subscribed B Pald up eapital

d and Subscriber Capital
55,000,000 (31 March 2018: 12,000,000 and 1 April 2017: 10,000,000)

Equity Shares of ®s, 10/~ each 5,50,000 1,20,000 1,00,000

Callad- nd faid Lip Capital

Fully Paid-Up 5,520,000 1,20,000 1,00,000
55,000,000 (31 March 2018: 12,000,000 and 1 April 2017; 10,000,000)
Equity Sharas of Rs, 10/« rath

Total 5,580,000 1,20,000 1,00,000
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Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Stataments for the year ended 31 March 20192
{All amaunt in INR thousands, except far share data unless stated otherwise)

Asat As at
31 March 2012 31 March 2018

Note 15: Other Equity

Share based payment reserve

Dpening balance 515 -
Compensation optlons granted during the year {441) 515
Closing balance 74 515

Retatned earnings
Openling balance {17,752) 233
Profit far the year {44,850) {17,985)
Itatns of other comprehensive income recognised

dlrectly in retained earnings .
- Re-measurement {losses)/gains on defined benefit -

plans, net of tax (71)
Closing balance {87,673} {17,752}
Tatal {67,599) 117,237)

Share based payment reserve: The ultimate holding Company provides share based payment schemes to the
emplayees of the Company.Share based payment reserve is used to recognise the valug of equity settled
shara based payments provided to employaes as a part of thelr remuneration.

Retained earnings: These reprasent the surplus in the profit and loss account and is free for digtribution of
dividend.




Clix Housing Finance Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amount in iINR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 16: Interest Income
On financlal assets measured at Amortised cost
Interest on [oans 35,779 54
Total {A) Gross 35,779 54
Year endad Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 17: Fees and commission income
Application fees and other charges 3,019 57
Total 3,019 57
Year ended Year ended
31 Mayrch 2019 31 March 2018
Note 18: Net gain/ (loss} on falr value changes
{A) Net gain/ {loss) on financial instruments at fair value through
profit orloss
(i) On trading portfolio
- Investments 743 -
{ii} On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit - -
ar loss
Total Net gain/{loss) on financial instruments 743 -
(B)Fair Value changes:
-Realised - -
-Unrealised “ -
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes{A) ta tally with (8) 743 .
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
MNote 19: Other incame
Interest on fixed deposit 276 5491
Total 276 5,491




Clix Housing Finance Private Limited

Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

{All amount fn INR thousanes, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 Mareh 2018
Mote 20: Finance Costs
On financial assets measured at amartised cost
Intarest on loans
- On tarm loan 5,112 -
Bank charges 65 14
Other Interest 1,258 -
Jotal 6,435 14
Year ended Yeuar ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 22: Employee Banefits Expenses :
Salaries and wages 45,504 16,279
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,412 354
Share Based Payments to emplovees (441} 515
Staff walfare expenses 434 160
Training, relocation and recruitment 1,303 -
Total 45,212 17,308
Year ended Year ended
31 varch 201% 31 March 2018
Nota 21: lmpairment on financial instruments
On finunelal instruments measurad at amortised cost
Loans 2,586 42
Loan Commitment (51) 124
Total 2,535 166
Year ended Yaar ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 23: Other expensas
Rent 11,030 2,011
Printing & stationary 622 -
Rates and taxes 114 27
Repairs and maintenance 1,130 137
Insurance 1,260 B
Electricity & Water Charges 270 -
Travelling and conveyance 1,611 300
Pastage, tetagrams and telephone 1,355 750
Legal and professionat fees * 13,290 2,733
Cutsourced service costs 300 122
Advertisement and sales prormotion 412
Total 31,485 5,080
* Legal and professional charges includes auditars remuneration {excluding goods and service tax)
comprises the foflowing:
A, Payment to auditors Year endad Yaar ended
31 March 2019 33 March 2018
As auditor:
Audit fee
*-Statutory audit 450 273
*-Tax audit 50 -
In other capacity:
Other services (certification fers) 100 109
Reimbursement of expenses - 11
Total 600 393
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Clix Heusing Finanre Private Limited
Netes to Standalane Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All ameunt in thousands, except for share data unless stated otharwlse)

Note 24! Income Tax

Current tax

The companents of incarne tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are;

Prafit or loss section

Year ended
g1 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2008

Current Income tax:
Current income tax charge
Adjustments in respact of current income tax of previous yaar
Deferred tax:
Relating to orlginatian and raversal of temporary differences
Incoma tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss
Currant tax
Deferred tax

Defarred Tax

12

19

19

* in view of the carried forward tax losses and pursusnt to the policy of the Company on deferred tax mentioned in note no, 3.12, the deferred tax
assel {net) not recegnised by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 i3 Rs. 19.60 and Rs. 6.31 [in Thousands)

respactively.




Clix Housing Finance Privata Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 201%
{Al amount in Rupees '000s, excapt for share data unless stated otherwise)

Mote 25: Earning per share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
tha Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Dilutec EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the welghted average number of equity shares
that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary sharas into ardinary shares.

Periad endad Pariod ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Foliowing reflacts the prefit and share data used in EPS
computations:
Basic
Walghted average number of equity shares for computation of
Baslc EPS {Rs. in 0DD's) 27,608 11,447
Net profit for calculation of basle EPS (Rs. In 000's) {49,850} (17,985}
Basic earning per share {1.81) (1.57}
Dlluted
Weighted average humber of equity shares for computation of
Diluted EPS (Rs. [ 000's) 27,608 11,447
Net profit for calculation of Diluted EPS (Rs, In D00's) (49,850} (17,985)
Difuted earning per share {1.81} {1.57)
Nominal value of equity shares {in Rs.} 10,80 1.0.00

Reconciliation of weighted average numhber of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2019 for basic
and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars Welghted average no. of shares
Basic Diluted

Equity shares of fuce value of Rs. 10 per share

Opening 12,000 12,000

Additions 15,608 15,608

Closing 27,608 27,608

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2018 for basic
and diluted earnings per shara:

Particulars Weighted average ho. of shares
Basic Diluted

Equity shares of foce value of Rs. 10 per share

Opening 10,000 10,000

Additions 1,447 1,447

Closing 11,447 11,447




Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in Rupees '000s, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 26:Segment information

The Company’s primary business segment is reflected based on the principal business carried out, i.e. Housing
Financing. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is required to be made in the financial
statements of the Company. The Company operates principally within India and does not have operations in

© ecenomit environmeants with different risks and returns; hence, it is considered operating in single geographical
segment.
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Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standatone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in Rupees '000s except for share data unless stated otharwise}
Note 28: Contingent liabilities, commitments
A) Contingent liabilities
There is no contingent fiability as at year ended 31 March 2019 (Previous Year:NIL)

B) Commitment

{i) The Company has a commitment of Rs. 14,168 (previous year Rs.24,983) towards undrawn loan commitments
as at 31 March 2019,
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Clix Housing Einance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
{All amount iy INR 000", except for share data unless stated otherwise)

32 Falrvalue measurement

32.1 Valuation principles
Fair valug Is the price that would e received vo sell an asset or paid ta transfer a Habllity in an orderly transaction in the
principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price),
regardiess of whether that prica is directly/ indirectly observable or pstimated using 3 valuation technique.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classifizd based an a hierarchy of
vajuation technigues.

32,2 Valuation governance
The Commpany's fair value methodclogy and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other
protedures to ensure appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quakity and adequacy. All naw product initiatives
{including their valuation methadologies) are subject to approvals by Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) which shall e
reported to the Board of Diractor. The responsibility of ongalng measurement resides with business units . Once
sshmitted, falr value esimates are also reviewed and challengad by the Risk and Finance functions.

32.3 Valuation methodolagies of financial instruments not measured at fair value
The carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments are reasonable approximations of fair values at
financial statement level.




33

33,1

33.1.1

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year endad 21 March 2019
(Allamount in INR 000's, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Risk Management

Intreduction and risk profite

Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company's activities, it is managed thraugh an
integrated risk management framewark, including ongoing identification, measurement and moriitering, subject to
risk fimits and other controfs. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability
and each individual within the Company is accountabte for the risk exposures refating to his or her responsibilities,
The Company fs exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and inmterest rate risk, It is also subject to various
operating and business risks,

Risk management struture and policies

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk
rnahagement stratagies and principles. The Risk Management Committea has the overall responsibility for the
development of the risk strategy and implementing princlples, framewoarks, policies and limits, The Risk
Management Committee is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and reports to the
Board,

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an
independent control process is maintained. The unlt works closely with and reports to the Risk Management
Committee, to ensure that procedures are compliant with the overall framework.

Tha Unit is also responsible for monitaring compliance with risk principles, palicies and limits across the Company.
Each business group has its own unit which is responsible for the control of risks, including manitoring the actual
risk of exposures against authorised limits and the assessment of risks of new products and struciured
transactions.

The Company's Treasury is responstble for managing its assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure. Itis
also primarlly responsible for the funding and Lquidity risks of the Company.
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33.2 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge
their contractual obligations. The Company manages and controls eredit risk by setting limits on the amount of
risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by
manltoring exposures [h relation to such limits. Credit risk is monftored by the credit risk department of the
Company's independent Risk mangament Unit. [t is their responsibility to review and manage credit risk.

33.2.1 Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financia! assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
cradit risk was Rs. B,41,346 and Bs. 17,569 as of March'19 and March 31, 2018 respectively, being the total of
the carrying amount of loan balances and other financial assets.

33.2.2 Analysis of risk concentration

The Company's concentrations of risk are managed based on Loan to value {LTV) segregation as well as
geographica! spreatl. The following tables stratify credit exposures from loans to customers by ranges of loan-to-
value (LTV) ratia and on portfolio basis. LTV is calculated as the ratio of gross amount of the loan - or the
amount committed for loan commitments - to the value of the collateral. The value of the collateral for loans is
based on collateral value at erigination.

31 March 2019
Loans to customers:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV buckat Amount

0%-40% 1,16,489
41%-60% 2,36,070
61%-80% 4.47,507
Mare than 80% 34,560
Total . 8,34,626

Customer profile

Customer profile . Amount

Heousing loan 5,52,088
Loan against property 2,82,538
Total £,34,626
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Loan Commitments:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV bucket Ampunt
0%-40% 2,920
41%-60% 2,688
61%-80% 8,083
More than 80% 477
Total 14,168
Customer profile:

Customer profile Amount
Housing loan 9,932
Loan against property 4,236
Total 14,168
31 March 2018

Loans to customers:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV bucket Amount
0%-40% ~
41%-60% 12,968
61%-80% 2,963
More than 80% 1,596
Total 17,527
Custamer profile

Custamer profile Amount
Housing fean 2,964
Loan against property 14,563

Total

17,527
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{All amount in INR 000's, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

Loan Commitments:

1TV wise bifurcation:

LTV bucket Amount

0%-40% 1,350
41%-60% 6,450
61%-80% 7,495
More than 80% 9,688
Total : 24,983

Customer profile:

Customer profile ) Amount

Housing loan 22,133
Loan against property 2,850
Tatal 24,983
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33.4

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR 000's, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Market Risk

Markaet risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market factors, Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in

" the interest rates, cradit, liquidity and other market changes, The Company’s exposure to market risk is

primarily on account of interest rate risk.
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Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Allamount in INR 000's, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Interest Rate Rislc

The company is subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it Jends to customers at rates and for maturity
periods that may differ from funding sources, Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond
control, including the monetary policies of of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector
in India, domestic and international econemic and political conditions, inftation and other factors. In order
to manage interest rate risk, the company seek to optimize borrowing profile between short-term and fong-
term loans. The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversified resource-raising options to
minimize cost and maximize stability of funds. Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time
buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Committes supervise an interest rate
sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks.

The company mitigates its interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolic of fixed and variable rate loans

and borrowings.
Interest Rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In Interest rates (all other
variabfes being constant} of the Company’s statement of profit and loss:

2017-18
. o Effect on Profit
Particulars Basis Points
before tax
Loans
Increase in basis points 50 0.27
Decrease In basis points -50 (0.27)
2018-19
. Lo, Effect on Profit
Particulars Basis Points
: before tax
Loans
Increase in basis points 50 978
Decrease in basis points -50 (978)
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Note 34 : Maturity analysts of assets and lialillities
The table below shows an apalysis of assets and Niabilitles analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With regard to laans and
advances to customars, the company uses the same basis of expected repayment behavlour as used for estimating the ER:

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Assets Within 12 After 12 Total Within12  After 12 Total Within12  After 12 Total
moiths months months munths months manths

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 - 2l 107,709 - 1,072,709 1,00,344 - 1,006,344
Loans 25,446 8,09,181 8,34,627 405 17,122 17,527 - - -
Cther financial assets 4,092 - 4,092 739 - 739 -
Non-financial Assets
Current tax asset - 704 704 - 549 549 - - .
Other Mon financlal assets 4,363 - 4,363 - - - - - -

Total Assets 33,903 B,09,885 8,43,788 1,08,853 17,671 1,26524 1,00,344 - LOU@M
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trarle Payables

(I} total outstanding dues of
craditors sther than micro 53,228 - 53,228 8,427 - 8,427 45 B a5
enterprises and small enterprises

Dther Payabies

(i) total outstanding dues of
crediters sther than micro 9,569 8 9,569 2,533 - 2,533 - - -
enterprises and small enterprises

Borrowings [Other than debt

2,569,542 - 2,69,544 - - + - - -
securitles)
Other financial liabilities{ta be 26,178 26,178 11,020 11,009 ) i )
soecified)
Non-Financial Liahliities
Current tax liability - - - - - - - 51 o
Provisions 48 1,508 1,556 155 171 326 - L] -
Other Non-financial Liabilities 1,312 - 1,312 1,445 1,445 3 - 5
Tatal liabilities 3,59,879 1,508 3,61,387 23,589 171 23,768 50 61 111

Net (3,25,976) B,08,377 4,82,401 85,264 17,500 1,02,764 1,00,204 (61) _ 1,00,233
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Nota 35, Corporate social responsibility

Pursuant to Sectlon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is not requirad to incur any expenditure In
respect of corporate social responsibility during the year ended 31 March 2019. {Previous year Rs. NIL)

Nota 36, Expenditure in foreign currency

The company has not inclrred any expenditure in forelgn currency during current year and previous year,

Note 37, Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

The Company's exposure In respect of foreign currency denominated assets & liabilities [trade receivable & trade
nayablas) not hedded as at 31 March 2019 by derivative instrumeants or otherwise {Previous year USD Nil {Rs, NI,

Note 38. Share-based payments

{i) Detatls of the plan are given helow:

The Company does nat gravide any share-based compersation to fts emplayees. However, the halding company,
Clix Capital Services Private Umited has provided share-based payment schemes [Employee Siock Option Plan

2017 ["Plan™)) to employees.

Details of all grants In operation during the year ended March 31, 2019 are as given halow:

Particulars Grant-t Grant-li

Scherne Name Employee Stock Option Plan  Employee Stock Option Plan
Date of grant 18-Oct-17 07-Dec-18
No. of cptions appraved 12,57,08,445 12,97,08,445
No. of aptions granted 6,48,500 2,00,000
Exerclse price per option [in Rs.) 13.10 15.10
Method of settlemant Equity Equity

Vesting period and conditlons

Fixed vesting period is as:
- 1st vesting "3 years from the date of grant
- 2nd vesting "On expiry of one year
fram the 1st vesting date"
- 3rd vesting "On expiry of ene year
from the 2nd vesting date"
Conditlanal Vesting

Exwrcise period

A} 50% optlans to vest as per
stipulated vesting schedule
B) 50% options to vest as per
stipulated vesting schedule
on fulfillmant of stiputated

2,16,167
216,167

2,16,166

Linked with conditions over
the three years as stipulatad
in stock optlon plan

Five years from the daga of
each vesting

A) 50% options ta vest as per
stipulated vesting schadyle

B) 50% opticns to vest as par
stipulated vesting schadule on
fulfillment of stipulated

66,667
66,667

66,667

Linked with conditions over
the three years as stipulated in
steck option plan

Five years from the date of
aach vesting

{#i) The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown ln the following table:

Particulars

Yaarended  Yaar ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2013

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

Tatal expense arising from shara-hased payment

(4413 515

{441) 515
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{lii} Movements during the yeay

The following table Hiustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP} of, and movements

Parifoubars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Rumber Number Number Number
Grant -1 Grant -t Grant - Grant -1l
Outstanding at 1 Aprll 6,48,500 - “ "
Granted durlng the vear - 2,00,000 6,48,500
Forfeited during the year {£,48,500} . -
Exercised during the year " - - "
Expired during the year - - - -
Quistanding at 31 March - 2,00,000 6,483,500 P
Exercisable at 31 Marth - - - -
Weighted average exercise prices
{WAEP) 13.10 15.10 13,10 -

! The weighted average remainlng contractual life for the shara options outstanding as at 31 March 2019 was 7.56
years (Grant-1), B.6% years (Grant -il} and {31 March 2018 : B.56 years {Grant-1}}.
% The weighted average falr value of options granted during the year was 6,80 {31 March 2018 5.83).

? The range of exarcise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was Rs. 13.10 per option to Rs. 15.10
pet sption (31 March 2018: Rs, 13.10 per option).

The fallowing tablas list the inputs te the models used for the options granted during the year ended 21 March
2019 and 31 March 2018, respectively;

Year ended  Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Model used Black-Scheles  Black-Schales
Madel Model
Dividend yield {%) 0% 0%
Fxpected volatility [%) 43.37% 43.66%
-Tranche | 43.43% 43.99%
- Tranche (i : 43.68% 44.38%
« Tranche W
Risk-frea interest rate (%)
-Tranche ! 7.39% 6.77%
~ Tranche il 7.44% 6.87%
~Tranche Il 7.47% 6.95%
Lifa of the options granted |years)
- First vesting 3 years 3 years
- Second vesting A yedrs 4 years
- Third vesting 5 years S years
Fait value of the option [Rs.)
-Tranche } 6.13 6,25
< Tranche H . 6.82 6.86

« Tranche Il 7.40 7.39
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39, First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financlal statements, for the year ended 31 March 2019, are the first financial statements the Campany has
prepared In accordance with Ind AS. For perieds up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notifled under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAP or
previous GAAP), )

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending
oh 31 March 2019, together with the comparative period date as at and for the yaar ended 31 March 2018, as
described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s
opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2017, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains
the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the
balance sheet as at 1 Aprll 2017 and the finandlal statements as at and for the vear ended 31 March 2018,

Exernptions applied
Ind A5 101 allows first-thne adapters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certaln requirements
urder Ind AS. The Company has applled the following examptions/exceptions:

i, Estimates

The estimates at T Aprll 2017 and at 31 March 2018 are consistent with these made for the same dates in accordance
with Indian GAAP apart from the following items where application of Indian GAAP did not reguire estimation:

a) Impairment of financial assets hasoed o expected credit loss (ECL} model.

k) Determination of discounted value.

The estimates usad by the Company to prasent these amounts in accotdance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 1 April
2017, the date of transition.to Ind AS and as of 31 March 2018,

il, Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Company has classified the financlal assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basls of facts and circumstances
that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Hi. mpairment of financial assats
The Comipany has applied the exception related impairment of finandlal assets given in Ind AS 101, It has used

reasonable and supportable information that Is available without undue cost or effort ta determine the credit risk at
the date that financial assets were inftially recognizad and comprred that to the credit risk as at April 1, 2017.
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Iy Equity reconciliation for 1 Aprii 2017

Faotnote Pravious  Adjustments Ind AS
GAAP
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,00,344 - 1,00,344
Total assets 1,00,344 - 1,00,344
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY '
LIABILITIES
Financial Tabilitfes
Payables
I} Trade Payables 45 - 45
Non financial Kahilities
Current tax labilities {nef) 61 . &1
Cther Non-financial Liabitilies 5 - 5
Total llabilites 111 - 111
Equity
Equity share capital 1,00,000 - 1,00,000
Other equity 233 - 233
Total Hiabilities and equity 1,080,233 - 1,00,233

TOTAL 1,00,344 1,00,344
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¢ Equity reconciliation as on 31 March 2018

Previous  Adjustments Ind AS
Faotnote
GAAP
ASSETS
Financizal assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,07,708 “ 1,07,708
Loans (i 17,480 a7 17,527
Non- fihancal assets
Current tax assets (net} 549 - 549
Other non- financlal assets 739 - 739
Total assets 1,26,476 47 1,286,523
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABLLITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
I} Trade Payables 8,427 - 8,427
1) Other Payables 2,533 - 2,533
Other financial liabilities 11,029 - 13,029
Non financial liabilities
Provisions {iy 202 124 326
Other Mon-financial Liakitilias 1,445 - 1,445
Total liahilites 23,636 124 23,760
Equity
Equity share capital 1,206,000 - 1,20,000
Othar equity 1, (i) 117,160} (77} {17,237)
Total liabitities and equity 1,02,840 (77 1,02,763

TOTAL 1,26,476 a7 1,256,523




Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR 000's, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

d Profit reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2018

Previous Adjustments Ind AS
Faotnote
GAAP

Revenue from operatians

Interest Income 54 - 54

Fees and commission Income 57 - 57
Total revenue from operations 111 - 111
Other Income 5,491 - 5,491
Total Income 5,602 - 5,602
Expenses

Finance Costs 14 - 14

Impairmant on financial instruments {i) 89 77 166

Employee Benefits Expense {ii} 16,793 515 17,308

Other expenses 6,080 - 5,080
Total Expenses 22,976 592 23,568
Prafit/{loss} before tax (17,374) {592} {17,966)

Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax 19 - 19

(2) Deferrad Tax - - -

Profit/(toss) fos the period {17,393} (592) {17,985}

Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit o loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability - - -
Incomea Tax Effect - - -

Other Comprehensive Income , net of income tax - . -

Total Comprehensive Income for the period {17,393} (592) {17,985}




Clix Hausing Finante Private Limited
Nates to Standalana Financlal Statainents for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amaunt in INR G0O's, except for share data unless stated otherwisa)

e Faotnotes to the reconcillation af equity as at 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2038 and profit or Jass for tha year andad 31 March 2018

{I} Loans to customer
Under indlan GAAP, the Company has created pravisiun for loans to customer cohsists only In respact of specific amount for Incurred losses. Under (nd AS, impairment

aflawance has been determined based on Expected Loss madel {ECL). Due te ECL model, the Company impaked its loans to customer by INR 77 and for year ended an 31
March 2018 has been recognised in the stateipent af profit and loss,

(li} Share Daser Payments
Under Indlan GAAP, the Compary recognised enly the intrinslc value for the share based payments plaas as an expense. Ind AS requires the Fair value of the share options to ha

determinad using an appropriate pricing madel recognlsed over the vesting perlod, An expense of Rs, 515 thousands has been zecognised In profit of loss for the period ended

Miarch 31, 2018 with correspanding impact in ather equity for ESOP issted by Holding Company.

{ill) Statement of cash fows
‘The transitien from Indlan GAAP te Ind AS has net had a materlal impact on the statement of cash flows,

{iv) Figures under previous GAAF have been regroupedy reclassifed for Ind AS purpose wherever appiicable.




40 Datalls af dues to micro and small enterprises as defned under the M3MED Act, 2005
Thera are ne amaunts that need to ba dischosed in accordance with the Micra Smali and Medium Enterprlse Development Act, 2006 (the “MSMED') pertalning to micro or small
anjerprises, for the year ended March 31, 2019 {no supplier has intimated the Company abaut its status as miero or small entarprises or fts registration with the appropriate
authorlty under MSMED)

41, At the yesr end, the Company did not have any long-erm contracts including derivatives contracts far which there were any materfal foreseealie losses.

42 The Company's pending litigations comprise of clalms agalnst the Company primarily by the custoraers. The Company has reviewed all its pending fitigations and proceedings
and has adequately provided for whera provisians are required and disclosed the contingent llabllities where applicable, In its financtal staternents. The Company does not

expect the outcome of these proceedings b have 3 material adverse effect on Its Ainanctal statements of the Company as at March 31, 2019,

43 Addlitional Information required in terms of Housing Finance Campanies — Corporate Governance {Natlanal Housing Bank] Diractlons, 2018 NHB{N D)/ DASIREG/MC-07/20018, 02
July, 2018 have not been preparad as these directions will apply te every non-deposit accepling Houstng Finance Company with asset slze of s, 50 crores and above, as per the
fast audited balance sheet.

44 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassiied wherever applicable.
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